Comprehensive Rules Change Summary

Compiled by Mitchell Waldbauer
This is a summary of the recent changes to the rules for April. This includes updates to the rules for Infinite Crisis, improvements and clarifications to existing rules, and errata. This summary does not include corrections to typographical errors or minor changes in wording that do not change the rules’ or cards’ functionality. Changes to the rules are listed in order: changes added for new mechanics in Infinite Crisis, rules changes that affected more than one rule, and individual rules changes.
With the release of Infinite Crisis, we have fixed several templating issues that made cards difficult to understand. At the end of the document is a list of the changes.

Infinite Crisis Mechanic-Related Changes

The rules for a player’s endurance total “becoming equal to” or “switching with” another endurance total, if one is negative, are as follows:

104.1b If a player’s endurance total “becomes equal to” or “switches with” another player’s negative endurance total, that other player’s total is not treated as 0.

The following rule was changed due to the “identity matters” theme of DCR:

201.6 After some character card names, there is a diamond (<>) symbol followed by text. That text is the printed identity of the character. The naming format for these characters is “Name <> Identity.” If a character’s name isn’t followed by a diamond, its printed name is also its identity. A character’s identity is ignored when determining the uniqueness of that character.

The following rule was added for the new cost “free”:

203.1a Some payment powers have the cost “free.” This is the same has having a cost of “pay 0 endurance.”
The rules now clarify how a player transfers more than one equipment simultaneously:

512.4g If a player is instructed to transfer more than one equipment to a character, those equipment are transferred one at a time. Before that player transfers each equipment, he or she must check whether it is legal to attach that equipment to that character at that time.
Example: Pier 4 reads, “Each Fantastic Four character you control can be equipped with up to two equipment.” A player controls Pier 4; an unequipped Boris, Personal Servant of Dr. Doom; and a She-Thing equipped with Jetpack, Helm of Nabu, and Cloak of Nabu. That player activates Dr. Fate’s Tower to transfer all equipment from She-Thing to Boris. If that player chooses to transfer Jetpack first, the Fate Artifacts do not transfer because Boris is not a Fantastic Four character. If that player chooses to transfer either Fate Artifact first, then the other Fate Artifact can be transferred as well. However, the Jetpack cannot be transferred, as Boris has his maximum allowed number of equipment attached to him.

The rules now clarify that a “while” modifier whose duration ends before the modifier is created, is not created:

513.1d Some modifiers are written as, “<Text>, while <card name> remains exhausted.” The <card name> has not remained exhausted if it readied between the time the activated effect was played and the time it resolved. If it did, the modifier is not created. 
Example: Valentina Vostok, Bishop reads, “Backup: Activate >>> Characters your opponents control get -3 DEF this turn while Valentina Vostok remains exhausted. Use this power only during the build phase.” A player activates Valentina Vostok’s power. Before her effect resolves, a modifier readies her. Then, that player activates her again. The effect from the second activation resolves first and creates a modifier, because she has not readied since that activation. As the effect from the first activation resolves, it does not create a modifier, because she has readied since that activation.
The rules now include how to apply a replacement modifier that uses the word “additional”:

513.5f Some replacement modifiers replace an amount with an “additional” amount or an amount some number “less.” These modifiers increase or decrease the original amount. 

The following rules were added or modifier to include what a character “in combat” is:
In Combat

A character is in combat while it is an attacker or a defender. A character is in combat with another character while attacking or defending against that character. A character defending against a team attack is in combat with each attacker.

602.1c If all of the proposed attackers are still able to attack the proposed defender or direct defender, the proposed attackers gain the “attacker” and “exhausted” characteristics, are now attacking, and are “in combat.” If there are two or more attackers, the attack is also a team attack. Attackers in a team attack have the “team attacker” characteristic and are team attacking. The primary player is now the attacking player. The proposed direct defender is now the defending player; or the proposed defender gains the “defender” characteristic, is now “in combat,” and that character’s controller is now the defending player. Powers that trigger when a character “defends” or “becomes a defender” will trigger only once per character that becomes a defender. Powers that trigger whenever a character “defends against a <description> character” will trigger once per <description> character attacking.

602.2 A character loses the attacker and/or team attacker characteristic if it changes zones, changes controllers, loses the type character, or gains the stunned characteristic. Modifiers that remove the attacker characteristic also mean the character is no longer “in combat.” Modifiers that remove an attacker from an attack also cause the object to lose the attacker and/or team attacker characteristic. Removing one or more team attackers from an attack does not cause the attack to stop being a team attack. 
602.3 A character loses the defender characteristic if it changes zones, changes controllers, loses the type character, or gains the stunned characteristic. Modifiers that remove the defender characteristic also mean the character is no longer “in combat.” Modifiers that remove a defender from an attack also cause the object to lose the defender characteristic.

602.4 A character that gains the attacker or defender characteristic during an attack will trigger powers that trigger when a character “attacks” or “defends,” respectively. A character that gains the attacker characteristic during a team attack also gains the team attacker characteristic, and will trigger powers that trigger when a character “team attacks.”
602.8 As the last part of the attack conclusion, all attackers lose the “attacker” characteristic; all team attackers also lose the “team attacker” characteristic. Those attackers are no longer attacking and are no longer “in combat”; team attackers are also no longer team attacking. A team attack is no longer a team attack. The primary player is no longer the attacking player. The defender loses the “defender” characteristic, is no longer defending, and is no longer “in combat.” Its controller is no longer the defending player. Modifiers with duration “this attack” end. The attack substep ends and players return to the attack step of the primary player. Powers which have triggered get placed onto the chain, and then the primary player gets priority.

The following rules have been added for the loyalty—reveal keyword:

707.3a “Loyalty—Reveal” is a keyword that represents a continuous power that functions in any zone a card can be recruited from. The keyword “loyalty—reveal” means “If you don’t control a character that shares an affiliation with this card, then as an additional cost to recruit this card, reveal a character card in your hand or resource row that shares an affiliation with this card.”
707.3b Cards that refer to cards “with loyalty” refer to both cards with the “loyalty” keyword and cards with the “loyalty—reveal” keyword. 
The following rule was added for the tag keyword Backup:

707.14c “Backup” is a tag keyword on cards. Each backup card has an activated power that can be used only during the build phase.
Example: Surveillance Pawn, Army reads, “Backup: Activate >>> Non-Army characters you control get +1 ATK this turn. Use this power only during the build phase.”
The following rule was added for the tag keyword Vengeance:

707.14d “Vengeance” is a tag keyword on character cards. Each vengeance card has a triggered power that triggers “whenever <character name> becomes stunned.”
Changes That Affect Multiple Rules
The rules are clearer on what a cost, effect, or modifier that refers to a <card name> is referring to:

201.2 If an effect or modifier refers to the name of the card that produced it, it is only referring to the card that put the effect on the chain or whose text produced the modifier, and not to any other instance of that card.
201.3 If a cost refers to the name of the card that is its source, it is only referring to the card that is the source of that cost, and not to any other instance of that card. 

201.4 If an effect or modifier checks whether or not a player controls a card named <card name>, it is referring to an object with that card name. 

201.5 If an effect or modifier checks whether or not a player controls a <card name>, it is referring to either control of an object with that card name or control of an object with a modifier that states “you are considered to control <card name>.” (See “Considered To” in the Glossary.) 

The “comes into play” event has been redefined, and rules for cards coming into play stunned have been added:

214 Coming into Play

214.1 A character or equipment “comes into play” as part of it being put into the in-play zone as a character or equipment. A character card moving out of a resource row into a front or support row also causes a “comes into play” event. (See rule 512.3.) A player puts a character or equipment into play by following the instructions listed below in order. No player receives priority while following these instructions. 

214.2 The player makes any choices not already made, such as, “Will this come into play in a visible or hidden area?” for concealed—optional characters.

214.3 The player physically places the card into play, making it an object, and processes any “comes into play with counters,” “comes into play exhausted,” and/or “comes into play stunned” modifiers. 

214.3a All characters, except characters with concealed, come into play in a visible area. Characters with concealed come into play in a hidden area. Concealed—Optional characters come into play in the area chosen in rule 214.2.
214.3b All equipment, except concealed—optional equipment, comes into play attached to a visible character. Concealed—Optional equipment comes into play attached to either a visible character or a hidden character.

214.4 Coming into Play Stunned

214.4a A character that comes into play stunned was never non-stunned, and so does not trigger any powers that trigger off a character becoming stunned. 

214.4b A character that comes into play stunned does not cause stun endurance loss. 

214.4c A character that comes into play stunned does not come into play with a cosmic counter.

214.4d The text box of a character that comes into play stunned is inactive, so any of its powers that trigger off it coming into play do not trigger.

214.5 The game applies continuous modifiers.
214.6 The game checks to see if any powers trigger (including any on the object itself).
The rules for triggered powers and different ways that they can trigger have been clarified:

502.1 Triggered powers are identified by the words “at the start of,” “when,” or “whenever.” Triggered powers wait for their trigger events to occur, at which point they trigger. Triggered powers generate triggered effects on the chain.
Example: Artie, Arthur Maddicks reads, “Whenever Artie becomes stunned, target character gets -1 ATK this turn.” Artie’s power triggers whenever he becomes stunned. Artie’s controller chooses a target for his triggered effect as it goes on the chain.
502.1a Some triggered powers trigger off an event and have an additional trigger condition. That condition is checked only upon triggering and not on resolution.
Example: Witchfire, Rebecca Carstairs reads, “Whenever Witchfire stuns a character and you have 25 or less endurance, gain endurance equal to that character’s cost.” If she stuns a character, her power triggers only if you have 25 or less endurance. As her triggered effect resolves, you gain endurance regardless of your endurance total.

502.1b Some triggered powers have a conditional effect. The effect’s condition is checked only on resolution and not upon triggering. (Also see rule 508.2f.) 

Example: Legion, He Who is Many reads, “Whenever Legion becomes stunned, KO it if you don’t control another Emerald Enemies character.” This power looks only for Legion to become stunned as its trigger event. The condition of controlling another Emerald Enemies character is checked only on resolution. 
502.1c Some triggered powers have a conditional clause immediately after the trigger event, set off by commas. Such powers are called “double-check” powers. A double-check power triggers only if its condition is true. Its effect is negated if its condition is no longer true on resolution. 

Example: Xavier’s Dream reads, “At the start of the recovery phase, if there are no stunned characters in play, you may discard an X-Men character card from your hand. If you do, put a dream counter on Xavier’s Dream.” Xavier’s Dream’s controller controls a stunned character. At the start of the recovery phase, Xavier’s Dream’s power will not trigger.

Example: Annihilus reads, “At the start of the combat phase, if Negative Zone is not in play, lose 15 endurance.” At the start of the combat phase, no player controls Negative Zone, so Annihilus’s triggered effect is added to the chain. Before the effect resolves, Annihilus’s controller flips Negative Zone face up. When Annihilus’s effect resolves, the condition is no longer true, and the triggered effect is negated by the game rules.

The rules for which triggered powers use the game state before their trigger event have been expanded: 
502.3
Triggered powers use the game state immediately after an event to determine whether they could have triggered off that event and whether or not they did. Powers that trigger off an object becoming stunned, leaving play, or causing breakthrough are an exception to this rule. (See rule 502.4.) 

502.4
Triggered powers that trigger off an object becoming stunned, leaving play, or causing breakthrough look back to the game state at the moment right before the object became stunned, left play, or caused breakthrough. This information is used to determine if any powers existed that triggered off that event and to determine any other information that is relevant to the trigger event. Powers that trigger off a character or equipment leaving play will ignore whether that character or equipment’s text is currently inactive when determining whether or not they should trigger.

The rules on how to move an object have been clarified:

512.3c A player instructed to move two or more objects simultaneously picks up all those objects and then places those objects in empty positions. That player may not place more than one object in the same position.
512.3d Moving an object between areas or rows of the in-play zone does not cause it to change zones.
512.3e Moving a character to a front or support row or a resource to a resource row does not cause it to leave play or come into play and does not reset its timestamp. 

512.3f Moving a resource into a front or support row causes it to turn face up, leave play as a resource, and come into play as a character. (See rule 214.1.) Moving a character into a resource row causes it to turn face down, leave play as a character, and come into play as a resource. It’s still a character card while revealed in the resource row afterwards. In both cases, the object’s timestamp is reset, and any modifiers affecting it in its previous position do not continue to do so (unless they specify that they do.)
Individual Rules Changes
A stunned character does not have keywords, and so cannot be a <keyword> card:

201.2b If an effect or modifier refers to a <keyword> card, it is referring to a card with the <keyword> keyword. A stunned character has inactive text and no powers (see rule 701.12,) and so cannot be a <keyword> card.

Example: Sub-Mariner, Namor has the leader keyword. Sinister Citadel reads, “Put a +1 ATK / +1 DEF counter on target leader character you control.” If a player controls Sub-Mariner, that player can target him with Sinister Citadel unless he is stunned.

The rules are clearer on what a card with multiple versions has the same versions as:

202.6 A card with two versions (A and B) has the “same version” as another card with versions A and B, but a “different version” than a card with versions A and C or a card with only version A. However, all four cards “share” version A.

The rules have clarified what cards have inactive and active text while revealed:

210.5 Revealed cards have active text in all zones, even though the powers described by their text may not function in all zones. (See rule 500.2.) The only cards that have inactive text while revealed are stunned characters (See rule 701.12b.) and equipment attached to stunned characters. (See rule 302.5.)

The rules now distinguish between ordered and unordered zones:

213.1b There are four ordered zones: deck, KO’d pile, in-play, and chain. The ordering in the in-play zone is positional (i.e., cards are each in a different position). (See rule 706.) The ordering in the other three ordered zones is top-to-bottom in each one. Players may not alter the ordering of cards in an ordered zone. There are two unordered zones: removed-from-game and hand. Players may alter the ordering of cards in an unordered zone. 

The rules now clarify how to process two or more cards being put into a KO’d pile simultaneously:

213.4c If two or more cards are simultaneously put into a KO’d pile, the owner of those cards may arrange them in any order. 
The rules now clarify how to process two or more cards being discarded simultaneously:

213.4d If a player is instructed to discard two or more cards simultaneously, those cards are discarded one at a time.

The rules now clarify what is a “comes into play” event and what is not:

213.5a The in-play zone represents the part of the game where players may place objects. Each player has his or her own visible area and hidden area in the in-play zone. Moving an object between areas in this zone does not cause it to change zones, leave play, or come into play. Moving an object between rows in this zone does not cause it to change zones. Moving a character between the front and support rows does not cause it to leave play or come into play. Moving a character card from a resource row to a front or support row causes it to come into play as a character. Moving a character into a resource row causes it to leave play as a character and come into play as a resource. (See rule 512.3.)
The rules now clarify how to process two or more cards being put into the in-play zone simultaneously:

213.5i If a player is instructed to put two or more cards into the in-play zone simultaneously, those cards all come into play simultaneously. (See rule 703.)

The rules now directly state that character cards, and only character cards, have ATK, DEF, willpower, and identities:
301.7 Character cards, and only character cards, have the ATK, DEF, willpower, and identity qualities. 
The rules now clarify what additional costs and play restrictions on plot twists are:

304.7 Some plot twists have additional costs or play restrictions. These are continuous powers that function in the zone the card is played from. (See rule 500.1.)

The rules now specify that a player may only spend resource points inside his or her recruit step:

404.2 During a player’s recruit step, that player may spend resource points to recruit characters and/or equipment, and/or to play effects that require resource points. A player may neither gain nor pay resource points outside of his or her recruit step. 
The rules now clarify that a player may not recruit a character outside his or her recruit step:

404.3 In order to recruit a character or equipment, a player must be the primary player, that player must have priority, the chain must be empty, and it must be that player’s recruit step.

The rules now clarify what a <card type> power is:

500.3b Some cards refer to a “<card type> power.” This means the source of the power was a <card type> card, but not necessarily a <card type> object.
The rules now clarify how to identify a continuous power:

503.1a Any power that is not a payment power or a triggered power is a continuous power. 

The rules now clarify what a <card type> effect is:

504.4 Some cards refer to a “<card type> effect” or an “effect from a <card type>.” This means the source of the effect was a <card type> card, but not necessarily a <card type> object. A triggered effect from a delayed triggered modifier is never a <card type> effect, regardless of the source of that modifier. (See rule 513.4b.)

The rules now clarify how to determine which opponent chooses modes for a modal effect:

505.1b If the effect is modal (see rule 508.2h), the player instructed to choose will make a choice of which mode or modes to use for the effect. If the effect indicates that “an opponent” is to make the choice, the player playing the effect decides which opponent makes this choice. If the effect has additional or alternate costs, the player announces his or her intention to pay additional costs or pay by the alternate method. If the effect has a variable cost represented by an X, the player announces the value of X.

The rules now directly state what a modal effect is:

508.2h If an effect is modal, the effect only produces modifiers for the chosen mode or modes. The phrase “choose one:” or “an opponent chooses one:” indicates that an effect is modal; after this phrase, each mode is separated by a semicolon. 

The rules now clarify how last known information works with revealed cards:

508.2e If an effect is looking for specific information from a card that is no longer in the zone it was in when the effect was added to the chain, the effect will use the last known information of the card from that zone. If an effect is looking for specific information from a card that was revealed while not in play and is no longer revealed, the effect will use the last known information of the card while it was revealed.

Effects with an “otherwise” clause now apply only the part inside of the appropriate sentence:

508.2f If an effect has an “otherwise” clause in its text, the effect looks to see if an “if” condition is true as it is resolving. If that condition is true, the player does not apply the part of the modifier in the “otherwise” sentence. If that condition is not true, that player does not apply the part of the modifier in the sentence containing the “if” clause.
The rules now clarify that a player may partially perform a “may do <action>” action, as long as it is not a replacement modifier with a cost.

511.6 Some modifiers say a player “may do <action>.” That player is instructed to make a choice whether or not to do <action>. That player may choose to do <action> even if he or she is not able to perform the action at all or is able to perform it only in part. Replacement modifiers with a cost ignore this rule and use rule 203.7. 

Example: Charaxes, Killer Moth reads, “Whenever Charaxes stuns a character, you may put three character cards from your KO’d pile that share an affiliation with Charaxes on the bottom of your deck. If you do, KO that character.” A player controls Charaxes and has one character that shares an affiliation with Charaxes in the KO’d pile. Charaxes stuns a character. That player can choose to put the one character on the bottom of his or her deck. However, this does not satisfy the “if you do” clause, and the stunned character will not be KO’d.

The rules now use the term “flags” to describe how a continuous modifier from an effect applies to objects:
513.2c A continuous modifier from an effect either attempts to modify the qualities of objects (see rule 513.2h,) or does not (see rule 513.2d.) If it does, it “flags” affected objects as the effect resolves and affects only those flagged objects for its duration.

513.2d A continuous modifier from an effect that doesn’t attempt to modify the qualities of objects doesn’t flag any objects as the effect resolves. Such a modifier continuously checks what objects it applies to, and so it can affect objects that weren’t affected when it was created and can stop affecting objects that were affected when it was created. 
The rules now clarify that a delayed triggered modifier will have a duration or it will trigger off the “next <specific time>”:
513.4a Delayed triggered modifiers are a type of continuous modifier from an effect. The modifier will have an associated duration or specify that it triggers off the “next <specific time>.” Once created, a delayed triggered modifier exists independently of its source. 

The rules now clarify that delayed triggered modifiers do not inherit any types from the effect creating them: 

513.4b Delayed triggered modifiers act as triggered powers, except that they will trigger off the event outlined in the modifier only during the duration of the modifier. (See section 502.) An effect created by a delayed triggered modifier follows the rules for triggered effects. (See sections 505 and 506.) That effect has no types other than “triggered.” It never inherits any types (such as payment, activated, character, plot twist, and so on) from the effect that created the delayed triggered modifier.

The rules now clarify that a modifier’s dependency on another modifier will take into account choices made for that modifier:

514.2 A continuous modifier is said to depend on a second modifier if the presence of the second changes which objects the first could apply to or how it could apply to those objects. It doesn’t matter what objects are actually in play; the potential for the dependency simply needs to exist for the first to be considered dependent on the second. If a modifier involves making choices, whether or not a second modifier depends on it takes into account which choices were actually made for the first modifier. Modifiers never depend on replacement modifiers

The rules now clarify that a revealed face-down resource only has payment powers that are usable only while it is revealed and continuous powers:
701.11b A revealed face-down resource has all of its characteristics and qualities, except that it can’t have the object types “location,” “equipment,” “character,” or “plot twist.” It only has the object type “resource.” In addition, it can’t have any powers except payment powers that are usable only while it is revealed and continuous powers. It can still be seen to be a character card, equipment card, and so on
The rules on how a player may reveal a face-down resource so that he or she may use a power have been clarified:

701.11e A player may reveal a face-down resource in his or her resource row any time he or she has priority. This does not use the chain, and the resource returns to being unrevealed afterward if nothing else happens. If the resource has a payment power that is usable only while it is a revealed face-down resource, this lets such a power be used. In addition, if the resource has any continuous powers, such as reservist, those powers are active while the resource is revealed. (See rule 701.11b.)

Example: Moonglow reads, “Reservist <p>Moonglow has the team affiliations of each other character you control. <p> Activate, discard a card >>> You may search your deck for a Team-Up card, reveal it, put it into your hand, and shuffle your deck.” A player may reveal Moonglow from his or her resource row any time that player has priority. If that player reveals Moonglow during his or her recruit step, while the chain is empty, Moonglow’s reservist power lets that player recruit Moonglow from the resource row. While Moonglow is a revealed face-down resource, she has the team affiliations of each other character that player controls. However, her payment power cannot be used, because it’s not a payment power usable only while she is a revealed face-down resource. 
The rules now make it clear that stunned characters cannot have any powers. 

701.12f While a character is stunned, it loses and cannot have any powers.
The rules now clarify which characters can be in the same column as others:

706.2b Two characters are not in the same column if they are controlled by different players.

The rules on a character that “cannot become powered-up” now say that the power-up effect is not created instead of just not being applied:

707.4c Some cards state that certain characters “cannot become powered-up.” Because “becoming powered-up” is treated specially (see rule 707.4), this phrase has a special meaning: If a character has such a “cannot become powered-up” modifier affecting it, any power-up modifier that would be applied to that character is not created. Subsequently removing the “cannot become powered-up” modifier will not reverse this.

The following glossary definitions have been added or clarified:
Attacks

A character “attacks” whenever it “becomes an attacker.” The two terms mean the same thing.

Defends

A character defends when it gains the “defender” characteristic and becomes a defender. Powers that trigger whenever a character “defends” or “becomes a defender” will trigger only once per character that becomes a defender.

A character “defends against” another character when it is attacked by that character. Powers that trigger whenever a character “defends against a <description> character” will trigger once per <description> character attacking.

Exactly One <Something>

If a cost or modifier refers to “exactly one <something>,” it is specifying “one and only one <something>.”
This is different from a cost or modifier referring to “a <something>,” which may not mean “one and only one <something>.” 

Recruit

To recruit a character or equipment means to announce it, put it on the chain, and pay its costs.

Replace
“Replace” is an event that is done to a resource. To replace a resource, its controller reveals it, then KO’s it. Then, if he or she did, that player puts the top card of his or her deck face down into his or her resource row where the KO’d resource was. That player may look at that card once it’s in the resource row. (See rule 213.5g.) 

Some modifiers instruct a player to replace more than one resource simultaneously. All of the resources are chosen and then KO’d. Then for each resource he or she KO’d, that player puts the top card of his or her deck face down into his or her resource row where the KO’d resource was. That player may look at each of those cards once it is in the resource row. (See rule 213.5g.) 

Some modifiers look to see if a resource was replaced. A resource has been replaced if an event has instructed a player to replace a resource, and as a result, that player has KO’d a resource and put the top card of his or her deck face down into his or her resource row where the KO’d resource was.
A cost that includes replacing some number of resources cannot be paid by a player that does not have at least that number of cards in his or her deck.

Reveal
This is an event that makes public a specified card or zone. The duration of the reveal is determined by the effect creating the reveal event.

A player may only reveal a face-down resource he or she controls. A revealed face-down resource will have its continuous powers, and any payment powers that are usable only while it is revealed, but no other powers. (See rule 701.11e.)

A revealed face-down resource has its normal qualities, other than object type, while it’s revealed, but is still just a resource object. For example, it does not momentarily become a character while revealed, even though it may be a character card.
Revealing a card does not, by itself, interrupt “passing in succession.”
Share 

Effects, play restrictions, and game rules may check if a card shares a characteristic, a value, or a team affiliation with another card. A card shares “a <something>” or “an <something>” with another card if it shares at least one <something> with it. A card shares its own characteristics and qualities with itself. A card that does not have a certain characteristic, value, or team affiliation cannot share it with any card, including itself. 

Tag

Tags are versions or keywords that identify groups of cards. There are no rules to learn for them.

The list of tag versions includes the following, which are referenced by other cards: Acolyte, Construct, Deep Six, Earth 2, Fate Artifact, Forever People, Freedom Force, Knight, Magic, Team-Up, Wrecking Crew, and X-Corp.

The following tag keywords identify cards with similar powers: Ally, Backup, and Vengeance.
Transferable
Transferable is a keyword that some equipment have. Transferable cards have the following triggered power:

At the start of your formation step, you may transfer this card.

Transferable effects go on the chain after you finish rearranging your characters.

Version

The text appearing immediately below the name of a card is the version of that card. (See section 202.)

A card with two versions (AB) has the "same version" as another card with versions AB, but a "different version" than a card with versions AC or a card with only version A. However, all four cards "share" version A.

Template Changes

With the release of Infinite Crisis, we have fixed several templating issues that made cards difficult to understand. For each template, one card is listed to show how the cards have changed, and a list is provided indicating each card that changed. 
Some cards were printed with an “if you do” clause where some of the actions to be performed “if you did” were in a separate sentence, and sometimes in different modifiers. These cards have been changed so that all of the actions to be performed “if you did” are within the same sentence.

Cards affected: Adam Strange, Champion of Rann; Divided We Fall.

Divided We Fall

New:

Play Divided We Fall only during your attack step. <p> You may stun a ready Secret Society character you control with cost greater than that of target character an opponent controls. If you do, ready that character and move it to your front row, and at the start of the recovery phase, that character’s owner moves it to his front row.
Old:

Play Divided We Fall only during your attack step. <p> You may stun a ready Secret Society character you control with cost greater than that of target character an opponent controls. If you do, ready that character and move it to your front row. At the start of the recovery phase, that character’s owner moves it to his front row.
Also affected: Cards that had shuffling and/or putting a card into play as separate sentences. They are not listed here, an example, Emerald Dawn, is below.

Emerald Dawn 
New:

You may KO a character with willpower 1 or greater you control. If you do, search your deck for an affiliated character card with willpower 1 or greater, reveal it, put it into your hand, and shuffle your deck.
Old:

You may KO a character with willpower 1 or greater you control. If you do, search your deck for an affiliated character card with willpower 1 or greater, reveal it, and put it into your hand. Shuffle your deck.
Some cards were printed with the text “put <some number of cards> on the bottom of <a deck> in any order.” These cards no longer say “in any order,” however, the rules say that the owner of the deck will choose their order.

Cards affected: Baxter Building; Cerebro; Doom’s Throne Room; Lois Lane, Star Reporter; Longshot, Rebel Freedom Fighter; Mr. Fantastic, Reed Richards; Revenge Pact; Talia, Daughter of the Demon’s Head; The Joker, Joker’s Wild; Twist of Fate; USS Argus; Willworld.

Baxter Building 
New:

Activate >>> Reveal the top card of your deck. If you control a Fantastic Four character, instead, reveal two cards. Put all revealed equipment cards into your hand. Put all other revealed cards on the bottom of your deck. 

Old:

Activate >>> Reveal the top card of your deck. If you control a Fantastic Four character, instead, reveal two cards. Put all revealed equipment cards into your hand. Put all other revealed cards on the bottom of your deck in any order.
Some cards were printed with the text “face-up plot twist.” These cards now say “plot twist.” A face-down resource cannot be a plot twist.

Cards affected: Dr. Doom, Diabolic Genius; Micro-Chip, Linus Lieberman.

Dr. Doom, Diabolic Genius

New:

When Dr. Doom comes into play, you may turn a plot twist you control face down. <p> While you control another non-stunned Doom character, your opponents cannot play plot twists from their hands.

Old:

When Dr. Doom comes into play, you may turn a face-up plot twist you control face down. <p> While you control another non-stunned Doom character, your opponents cannot play plot twists from their hands.
Some cards said that a character can’t use payment powers. These cards now say that those character’s controllers can’t use those characters payment powers.

Cards affected: Madame Web, Cassandra Webb; Maxwell Lord, Black King; Ra’s al Ghul, The Demon’s Head.

Madame Web, Cassandra Webb
New:

Whenever an activated power of a Spider-Friends character you control is used, gain 2 endurance. <p> Activate >>> Look at the top two cards of target player’s deck. You may put those cards into that player’s KO’d pile or on top of his deck in any order. 
Old:

Whenever a Spider-Friends character you control uses an activated power, gain 2 endurance. <p> Activate >>> Look at the top two cards of target player’s deck. You may put those cards into that player’s KO’d pile or return them to the top of his deck in any order.
Some cards were printed with the text “chooses and discard a card.” These cards now say “discards a card.” They are functionally the same.

Cards affected: Professor X, Charles Xavier; Psylocke, Betsy Braddock; The Riddler, Edward Nygma.

Professor X, Charles Xavier
New: 

When Professor X comes into play, if you control another X-Men character, target player discards a card. <p> Activate >>> Target player discards a card. Use this power only during the combat phase.

Old:

When Professor X comes into play, if you control another X-Men character, target player chooses and discards a card. <p> Activate >>> Target player chooses and discards a card. Use this power only during the combat phase.
Individual Card Changes

Crisis on Infinite Earths has been corrected. Only character cards have team affiliations. The third power is now a replacement instead of a triggered power.

Crisis on Infinite Earths

New: 
Ongoing: Characters you control, as well as character cards in your hand, KO’d pile, and deck lose all team affiliations, have the Crisis affiliation, and cannot have any team affiliation other than Crisis. <p> Character cards you own are not unique. <p> If a character card you recruited would come into play, instead, KO all characters you control with the same printed name and version as that card, then put that card into play.

Old:

Ongoing: Characters you control, as well as cards in your hand, KO’d pile, and deck lose all team affiliations, have the Crisis affiliation, and cannot have any team affiliation other than Crisis. <p> Character cards you own are not unique. <p> Whenever you recruit a character, KO all characters you control with both the same name and version as that card.

Foiled’s template has been updated.

Foiled
New:

Play Foiled only from your resource row and only during the combat phase. <p> If Foiled is in your resource row, KO target ongoing plot twist and KO Foiled.

Old:

Play Foiled only from your resource row and only during the combat phase. If Foiled is in your resource row, KO target ongoing plot twist and KO Foiled.
Forced Allegiance now has an additional cost, instead of a modifier whose choice is made on resolution.

Forced Allegiance
New:

As an additional cost to play Forced Allegiance, choose a team affiliation among characters you control. <p> Ongoing: Affiliated characters you control lose all team affiliations and gain the chosen affiliation.

Old:
Choose a team affiliation among characters you control. <p> Ongoing: Affiliated characters you control lose all team affiliations and have the chosen team affiliation.
Lady Shiva’s template has been updated.

Lady Shiva, Sandra Woosan

New:

Loyalty. Whenever Lady Shiva defends against exactly one attacker, Lady Shiva gets +3 ATK / +3 DEF this attack. (Lady Shiva does not get this modifier when team attacked.)
Old:

Loyalty. Whenever exactly one character attacks Lady Shiva, she gets +3 ATK / +3 DEF this attack. (Lady Shiva does not get this modifier when team attacked.)
Mammoth’s second triggered power now sets up a delayed triggered modifier, instead of having these be separate powers.
Mammoth, Baran Flinders

New:

As an additional cost to recruit Mammoth, reveal a Fearsome Five character card from your hand. <p> When Mammoth comes into play, KO a resource you control, and when Mammoth is next put into a KO’d pile from play, put the top card of your deck face down into your resource row. <p> Whenever Mammoth becomes stunned, KO him.

Old:

As an additional cost to recruit Mammoth, reveal a Fearsome Five character card from your hand.<p>When Mammoth comes into play, KO a resource you control.<p>Whenever Mammoth becomes stunned, KO him.<p>When Mammoth is put into a KO’d pile from play, put the top card of your deck face down into your resource row. 

Mutant Massacre has been updated because of the addition of the “identity matters” theme of Infinite Crisis.

Mutant Massacre
New:

As an additional cost to play Mutant Massacre, exhaust a Mutant you control. <p> Remove target stunned character from the game. <p> Ongoing: Your opponents cannot recruit non-Army character cards with the same printed name and version as the character you removed.

Old:

As an additional cost to play Mutant Massacre, exhaust a Mutant you control. <p> Remove target stunned character from the game. <p> Ongoing: Your opponents cannot recruit non-Army character cards with the same name and version as the character you removed
Purple Man now has an “if you do” clause.

Purple Man, Zebediah Killgrave
New:

Activate >>> KO a resource you control. If you do, move target face-down resource an opponent controls to your resource row, and that opponent puts the top card of his deck into his resource row.

Old:

Activate >>> KO a resource you control. Move target face-down resource an opponent controls to your resource row. That opponent puts the top card of his deck into his resource row
Storm’s wording now makes it clear which character needs to have flight to satisfy her trigger event.
Storm, Gold Leader
New:

Leader: Characters adjacent to Storm have flight. <p> Whenever a character adjacent to Storm defends against or attacks a character with flight, power-up that adjacent character.

Old:

Leader: Characters adjacent to Storm have flight. <p> Whenever a character with flight attacks or defends against a character adjacent to Storm, power-up that adjacent character.
The reveal for Underground Sentinel Base is now optional.

Underground Sentinel Base
New:

Activate >>> You may reveal a face-down Army character card with the printed Sentinel affiliation from your resource row and move it face up to your front or support row. Use this power only during your recruit step.

Old: 

Activate >>> Reveal a face-down Army character card with the printed Sentinel affiliation from your resource row and move it face up to your front or support row. Use this power only during your recruit step
Utility Belt’s wording removes the word “power,” because without it, the card is functionally the same.
Utility Belt

New:

Equip only to a Gotham Knights character. <p>Equipped character can attack as though it had flight and range and has “Activate >>> Negate target payment effect.”
Old:

Equip only to a Gotham Knights character. <p>Equipped character can attack as though it had flight and range and has “Activate >>> Negate target payment power effect.”
